
                                                               CCIITTYY  OOFF  BBUURRLLIINNGGTTOONN  

                                   Administration Department 
                                                                                                                                 300 N. Pine Street, Burlington, WI, 53105 

                                                                                                                                    (262) 342-1161 – (262) 763-3474 fax 
    www.burlington-wi.gov 

 
CITY OF BURLINGTON 

Committee of the Whole Minutes 
Robert Miller, Mayor 

Diahnn Halbach, City Clerk 
Tuesday, June 18, 2013 

 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

Council President Tom Vos called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. starting with roll call.  Aldermen 
present:  Bob Prailes, Ed Johnson, Ruth Dawidziak, Tom Vos, Tom Preusker, and Todd Bauman. 
Excused: Mayor Miller, Peter Hintz, and Jon Schultz 

 
Also present: City Administrator Kevin Lahner, City Attorney John Bjelajac, Fire Chief Perry Howard, 
Public Works Director Craig Workman, Public Works Supervisor Dan Jensen, Treasurer Steve 
DeQuaker, Director of Administrative Services Megan Watkins, Library Director Gayle Falk, and Tom 
Foht of Kapur Engineering. 
 
Council President Tom Vos announced that he would be retaining his right to vote during this meeting. 

2. Citizens Comments and Questions 

None 

3. Approval of Minutes from June 4, 2013 
A motion was made by Johnson with a second by Bauman to approve the minutes from June 4, 2013.  
With all in favor, the motion carried to approve the minutes.  

4. Resolutions 

Resolution 4619(9) to consider authorizing the issuance and establishing parameters for the sale of 
the not to exceed $6,305,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds.   

Alderman Preusker inquired if there was any difference in the risk to the City in moving forward with the 
proposed bond versus the original bonds. David Wagner of Ehlers & Assoc. explained that assuming the 
parameters are met, the bonds will be sold at a fixed rate and can’t be changed; the risk then becomes the 
bond holders because they’re the ones who need to worry about the City paying them. Wagner further 
stated that there is no risk to the City if we move forward; however, the risk exists as it stands now due to 
the Federal rate increases. Wagner further reviewed the proposed bond package and explained the 
percentages and dollar amounts involved; the Conditions of Issuance; and the Authorization and Sale of 
the Bonds. Wagner went on to explain the Certificate Approving the Preliminary Official Statement and 
corrected an error in Section 4 of the Terms and Bonds. The amount was incorrectly stated as $6,305,000 
and should have been $6,330,000. Wagner stated that if the resolution should pass, bidding would open on 
Thursday, June 27, 2013 at 11:00 a.m. Bonds would be sold once all parameters are met. Wagner further 
stated that the City was successful in refinancing their debt the last time this was done. 

Johnson summarized that the point of this refinancing is to save the City money and asked how much 
would the City save by doing this. Wagner responded that the initial estimates amounted to be between 4 
– 4.5% which would amount to approximately $240,000 maximum and $150,000 minimum depending on 
the market.  



 2

Resolution 4620(10) to consider approving the Suburban Mutual Assistance Response Teams 
Agreement. 

Attorney Bjelajac commented that he felt this was a good document and worthy of the Council’s 
consideration but needed to point out that participation in this agreement involves that all costs incurred 
becomes the City’s and we would not be reimbursed by other municipalities that we help out.  

Vos asked if this was set up the same way as MABAS. Lahner responded that SMART program is 
essentially set up on the same platform as MABAS except that it’s designed to work for the Police 
Department not the Fire Department. 

Resolution 4621(11) to consider approving an Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map for property 
located W. State Street in the Town of Burlington.   

Prailes asked what would happen if the Council chose not to approve the Extraterritorial CSM. Lahner 
responded that they (Peter Scherrer Group for Wisconsin Vision & Associates) would not be able to move 
forward on the project. Lahner further stated that under State Statutes within a certain radius of the City 
Limits we have extraterritorial review of plats and land combinations which was designed with the 
thought in mind that eventually these properties would come into the City.  

Vos clarified that the radius is 1 ½ miles from the City limits and as the City moves out, the radius moves 
as well.  

Preusker clarified that because this is the Town and not the City, that there will not be any city 
improvements or infrastructure – no water, no sewer. Lahner responded that was correct. Lahner further 
stated that the property is located just outside the contiguous boundary of the City, and if the City were to 
have them annexed and provide those services and try to have their business in the city, an island of Town 
property would be created, which is illegal under state statutes. Lahner explained you can not create a 
separate island of Town property surround by City property. Eventually this property will come into the 
City as the other properties in between the City and the Town come into the city, but cannot be 
determined as to when at this time.  

5. Ordinances 

Ordinance 1968(2) to consider amending Chapter 274-11(D) and Chapter 274-11.1 titled “Alcoholic 
Beverages in Outdoor Sidewalk Seating Areas” and “Use of Streets” to change the outdoor seating 
deadline time to 10 PM.   

Attorney Bjelajac clarified that the reason this amendment is being requested is so that the outdoor seating 
deadline for restaurants who are not serving alcohol matches up with the outdoor seating deadline for 
restaurants that do serve alcohol. He further stated that both proprietors would have until 11:00 p.m. to 
remove their furniture from the sidewalk.  

Johnson asked whether or not the kitchen still needed to be open in order to be permitted to be seated 
outdoors. Bjelajac responded that only restaurants serving alcohol were required to be serving food in 
order to be allowed to continue serving alcohol outside. 



 3

6. Motions 

Motion 13-760 to consider a loan to the Burlington Cemetery Association in the amount of $15,000.  

Attorney Bjelajac explained that under the Wisconsin Statutes there has to be a failure of the existing 
Cemetery Association to care for the cemetery for one year before the City is allowed the option of 
coming in to help with the operations of the cemetery within the City’s boundaries. Bjelajac further stated 
that if there is a five year period in which the cemetery goes unmaintained, then the City has to take it 
over. Bjelajac went on to state that although the Cemetery Association has voted unanimously to dissolve, 
they are still currently running the cemetery, however, at a loss; hence the reason for the loan request. 
Bjelajac further stated that because there is also a portion of cemetery property located within the Town of 
Burlington, according to the Wisconsin State Statutes, the Town is required to take over operations of the 
cemetery immediately upon failure of the existing organization. Bjelajac suggested the option of an 
intergovernmental agreement with the Town, so long as the Town would agree to the partnership. Per the 
requested loan, Bjelajac stated, the Cemetery Board could become their own taxing authority and then 
ultimately be able to reimburse the requested funds back to the City; however, the City should assume for 
planning purposes, that the City would more than likely not see that money again. 

Dawidziak agreed with the importance of moving forward with this and felt loaning the $15,000 now was 
much less expensive than the City having to eventually take over the cemetery completely. Dawidziak 
also wanted to know what other steps the Cemetery was taking to try to help their situation.  

Earl Vorpagel, President of the Cemetery Association, responded that there has been some interest from 
outside sources; however, privatizing the cemetery would increase fees. Vorpagel felt this wasn’t in the 
best interest for the residents of Burlington. This loan would give the Board some breathing room until the 
end of the year and figure out a solution that would be in the best interest of everyone involved.  

Prailes wanted to know where the majority of the current burials exist. Vorpagel responded that the 
biggest portion of the cemetery resides in the Town. Prailes asked if there was a road that directly 
accessed the Town part or if the roads that had access were in the City portion of the cemetery. Vorpagel 
responded that access is all from the City side. Prailes stated that if the City funds this loan, the Town 
would benefit from it as well and wanted to know if it was possible to restrict the money from being used 
on Town property if they’re not willing to help out as well, considering the Town has turned down 
helping the cemetery twice now. Lahner responded that Council could restrict the funds to be used only 
on City property, however Lahner felt that wouldn’t help accomplish the goal that the Cemetery Board is 
trying to achieve. Vorpagel also responded in that what they are looking for is something that would serve 
the best interest of the community as a whole and isn’t concerned about the politics of the situation. 
Prailes and Preusker both agreed that the Town should step up. Prailes stated that there is family of the 
Town residents buried there and didn’t understand why they wouldn’t want to help out their own families.  

Preusker state that he didn’t want to see the cemetery fall into disrepair but wanted to know that if the 
State Statutes requires the Town to take over, then how much more involved should the City become and 
what constitutes failure. Bjelajac commented that failure would exist if the Cemetery Board dissolves as 
an organization and there would be nobody left to take of the cemetery and operate it. 

Vos stated that the City is not in the business of running a cemetery and felt that an immediate solution 
needed to be addressed as to avoid the dissolution of the Cemetery Association and the main goal is to 
make sure the Association can continue to run the cemetery. Vos further stated his support for the City 
wanting to help, but also voiced his frustration with the Town for not wanting to step up and take some 
responsibility as well, especially if the bulk of the burials are in the Town portion of the cemetery.  

Vorpagel said the Cemetery Board doesn’t want to see the cemetery dissolve and fall into disrepair and is 
willing to do whatever is necessary to avoid that from happening. Vorpagel further stated that the main 
goal is to find a solution that is fair and equitable to everyone involved and to avoid the politics. The loan 
would give them the breathing room they need and some time to find a better solution. 



 4

Council unanimously voiced their frustration with the Town’s unwillingness to help out and agreed that 
the Town needs to step up and take some responsibility for the cemetery as well.  

7. Adjournment 

A motion was made by Johnson with a second by Preusker to adjourn the meeting.  With all in favor, the 
meeting adjourned at 7:45 p.m. 
 
 
Minutes respectfully submitted by: 
 

 
 

 _____________________________ 
Diahnn Halbach 
Burlington City Clerk 
Racine & Walworth Counties 

 


